
Southern Hills Community Improvement District 
May 7, 2019 at 7:00 pm 

St James Church 
2645 East Southern Hills Blvd 

Springfield, MO 65804 
 
 
The Special Meeting was called to order at 7:01 p.m. by Carl Price at the St. James Church, 
2645 E. Southern Hills Blvd, and a quorum was declared present.   

Present:  Carl Price, Justin Foss, Bob Lowe, Jane Earnhart, Denise Heintz, John Heitz, Jeffrey 
Fenwick  

Absent: None 

Excused:  

Guests: Refer to attached sign in sheet 

 
New Business 
 
Announcement – Carl Price indicated to those present that this Special Meeting was for public 
comment on the proposed wall along a portion of the northern Southern Hills Lake shoreline.  
The next Special Meeting on May 15 is when the CID Board will discuss and vote on the matter. 
 
Rules of Order – Carl Price used an overhead to show those present the Ten Tenets of Civility, 
asked all to read and adhere to them during the public comments. Each speaker is limited to 5 
minutes, plus addressing questions. 
 
Proposal for Rock Wall along a portion of the shoreline of the northern lake – Bob Smith 
(2121 S. Eureka) provided handouts (see attached) to the Board and presented his proposal to 
address shoreline erosion due to: 1) prevailing wind, and 2) muskrats digging holes. There are 
currently 28 holes on the two properties proposing the shoreline protection.  
 
Jane Earnhart asked Bob to describe the proposed wall. Bob indicated it would be limestone 
stacked to an approximate height of 12 inches.  
 
Carl Price showed a photo of a modular block wall and asked such a wall would preclude the 
installation of vegetation. Bob answered, no.  
 
Denise Heintz noted that since this proposal impacts her property (as well as Bob’s) she will 
abstain from voting. She had considered abandoning the construction of the wall following the 
April 9, 2019 meeting, but Bob wanted to continue since the wall is a benefit to the lake water 
quality. 
 
Jeff Broekhoven (2208 S. Meadowview Avenue) presented a handout to the Board of various 
ideas (see attachment) for a long-term sustainable plan to protect the CID property.  He 
recommended a shoreline no-mow zone, noting that vegetation will hold the bank, and filter 
runoff. He feels removing wildlife is not a sustainable practice, and noted decisions now will 
impact the lakes until the current end of the 25-year tax of the CID( in 2043), and beyond (as the 
tax is renewed). He doesn’t think private owners should construct on CID property without prior 
Board approval, and mentioned CID projects must get approval by the City. (This item was 



clarified with the City following the meeting. As long as the CID is completing projects within the 
scope of the original petition, no city council or city manager approval is needed.) 
 
Carl Price asked if constructing the wall will preclude installation of vegetation. Jeff indicated he 
wasn’t sure if the wall and the vegetation can coexist or not. Jeff’ noted the CID primary goal is 
to improve water quality, he didn’t think stabilization (erosion control) fell within the CID petition, 
as written. 
 
Ray Crespo (2275 S. Meadowview) noted that the CID is supposed to make improvements that 
are available to the entire community such as benches, etc. He asked, what can non-lake 
frontage families receive for their taxes other than maintenance? He wants the ability to use the 
common area bordering the right-of-way, but not along people’s backyards (he doesn’t want the 
perception of invading their personal space). He does not agree with a trail along the back of 
homes. 
 
Lindsay Smith (2257 S. Edgewater Drive) asked, what does the CID actually own? Carl Price 
described the limits of CID property. 
 
Bruce Earnhart (2712 E. Crestview Street) indicated he was familiar with the construction of 
highways and bridges from his past work experience, and that riprap holds a bank, and 
vegetation will cover the riprap over time. He likes the diversity of the existing bank stabilization 
measures that have been installed over the years. He feels that muskrats are bad for the lake, 
and they belong in rivers or creeks. His three primary comments were 1) no trail should be 
along the back of the lots/homes, 2) lawn maintenance should minimize harmful chemicals, and 
3) people shouldn’t be encouraged to walk in steep areas due to a potential liability.  
 
Chip McGeehaw (2909 Southern Hills Blvd) asked Bob if the height of the wall is the total 
height? Or just to the top of the lake surface? He wants to be a good steward and has a 
background in Missouri Dept. of Conservation (MDC) with fishery management. He noted the 
type of soil impacts the amount of erosion. Bob clarified the wall will extend a couple inches 
above the typical lake surface elevation. 
 
Anonymous question – How long will limestone last? What type of maintenance will be 
required? It was noted that limestone is similar to the type of rock we see next to bridges. 
 
Steve Gintz (2904 E. Alpine) asked, if the population of muskrats is larger than it should be can 
we relocate the muskrats to help with Bob’s overall plan? Carl noted that MDC will allow them to 
be trapped, but we have to do it, and we need permission from MDC. If a homeowner places a 
trap on CID property, they will also need permission from the CID. 
 
Someone asked if a property survey had been completed for the CID property. Carl answered 
no due to the survey cost using up a sizable amount of the annual CID budget. The loss of 
lakeshore is based on old and current aerial images. 
 
Ray Crespo asked, will it be a liability to not know the physical property pin location if there were 
an accident? Carl indicated, if needed, a metes and bounds survey could be performed to 
determine (after the fact) if an accident was on CID property. 
 
Jeff Fenwick noted that the CID property includes the peninsula to the south of his property, but 
it would be difficult to access this area as well as some others without crossing private property. 
 
Carl noted the main charge of the CID is water quality. 
 



Mitchell Brandt asked about the CID petition/ordinance language related to structures and 
signage to create borders. Carl said that was intended to be for the outer border of the overall 
CID limits (not lake property limits).  
 
Ray Crespo asked if the proposed stones are 12” in size. Bob indicated they are various sizes. 
 
Bruce Earnhart mentioned that installing riprap is common for big lakes with wave action, and 
that it’s typically stepped into the adjacent slope to keep it from sliding. 
 
Joe Reynolds (4622 Glenwood) thanked the Board for all the work and efforts they have made 
to date to improve the aesthetics and quality of the lakes. 
 
Jeff Broekhoven had a closing comment to encourage everyone to read the CID ordinance. He 
felt it was meant for specific projects, and indicated that walls and erosion control are not listed 
in the document. 
 
John Heitz mentioned that much of the land adjoining the lakes had eroded over time and gave 
an example of irrigation piping that is now floating along the lake edge instead of in the lawn in 
was installed within. 
 
Carl Price reminded everyone, if something is proposed on CID property it needs CID approval. 
It it’s on private property, it’s not a CID issue. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Minutes prepared by: Jane Earnhart, Secretary, Southern Hills CID 










































